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Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  1

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page: page 149

Senator Schacht asked:

Can you give me – and you might want to take it on notice for more detail if you want to – the break-up. We have got $2.8 million for the airconditioning upgrade.  That leaves about another $40 million. What was the rest of the $40 million going to be spent over the next three years?

Answer:

Budget provision has been made for expenditure of $42.9M for the program of Stage 1 modifications to the National Gallery of Australia building.

In broad terms, the Stage 1 works has several key components:

· Remedial works, including the upgrade/refurbishment of:  airconditioning systems;  security systems;  fire safety systems and lightning protection system;  together with works to address other code compliance matters.  At this time it is estimated that this component of work will cost in the order of $14M.

· Works associated with the construction of a new front entrance, including:  the proposed new multi-level glass atrium located on the south west corner of the existing building; an extended loading dock and associated storage and art handling facilities; additional office and gallery spaces; new facilities for the main theatre; a new small theatre; upgraded first aid and new visitor facilities.  At this time it is estimated that this component of work will cost in the order of $21M.

· Site works, including those to:  address pedestrian safety; create a new entrance to the underground car park; relocate the bus car park; and provide a new front forecourt.  At this time it is estimated that this component of work will cost in the order of $4.5M.

· Other works and costs, including refurbishment of existing galleries and project related expenses. At this time it is estimated that this component of work will cost in the order of $3.4M.

It is emphasised that the above estimated costs may vary as the project continues to progress through the planning, approval, documentation, tender and construction phases of the project.
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Question:  2

Topic:  Gallery Enhancement

Hansard Page : Page 150

Senator Schacht asked:

Dr Kennedy, I have never seen such an artistic debate about a front door of any building in Australia that has been taking place, to put it in the crude non-architectural sense that I have, but how much are we going to spend on what appeared in last Saturday’s Sydney Morning Herald, a drawing of the new front for the building?  How much is that going to be out of the $43 million?

Answer:

Works associated with the construction of a new front entrance include: the proposed new multi-level glass atrium located on the south west corner of the existing building; an extended loading dock and associated storage and art handling facilities; additional office and gallery spaces; new facilities for the main theatre; a new small theatre; and upgraded first aid and new visitor facilities.  At this time it is estimated that this component of work will cost in the order of $21M.
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Question:  3

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page:  Page 150

Senator Schacht asked:

After consultation with Mr Madigan, you will provide copies of that correspondence to the estimates committee?

Answer:

It is assumed that the request is for copies of correspondence generated as a direct result of the Gallery’s consultations with Mr Madigan pursuant to its obligations under the moral rights amendments to the Copyright Act 1968, which came into force in December 2000.  

The Gallery is currently consulting with the original architect, Mr Madigan and will address the request to provide copies of correspondence at the completion of that process.
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Question:  4

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Page 151

Senator Schacht asked:

One other matter on this area: how much did you spend on international advertising to find an architect for this project?
Answer:

No expenditure was incurred on international advertising to find an architect for this project.
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Question:  5

Topic:  Gallery attendance figures

Hansard Page:  Page 152

Senator Schacht asked:

The next matter I want to raise with you, Dr Kennedy, is the issue of attendance at the gallery.  It was said in the Sydney Morning Herald last weekend that while other museums have seen huge increases in attendance when attendance charges have been dropped, the NGA attendance figures actually dropped in August 1998 to its smallest figures for 12 years.  The attendance figures are going down.  Do you find that strange that, despite dropping the charges, the attendance figures have gone down … You might say that the article is wrong; I give you an opportunity to clarify that.

Dr Kennedy:  If we provide you with the chart which shows the attendance at the gallery, you will see that it is made up of a number of components. Within the gallery itself, it is made up of those who visit the permanent collection and those who visit major exhibitions and may also see the permanent collection. These two figures combined give the total within Canberra. Externally, we have got travelling exhibitions, which are identified separately, around the country, and then, if there are international shows, that figure is also identified. It is also possible for us to identify further, as has been suggested by some critics that we have already included them and we have not, those attendances at exhibitions which have largely been of material from the National Gallery.

We will provide you with the flow chart, Senator, if you wish, and that will make it obvious.

Answer:

Comparative attendance statistics over the past five years are:


Visitors to National Gallery
Visitors to National Gallery travelling exhibitions
Total

1996/97
437,297
296,749
734,046

1997/98
482,370
172,342
654,712

1998/99
366,773
537,276
904,049

1999/00
574,415
709,452
1,283,867

2000/01
653,020
302,840
955,860
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Question:  6

Topic:  Records management

Hansard Page : Page 155

Senator Schacht asked:

I asked specifically about a complaint that official files had been removed from the staff work areas. The answer was ‘This is based on hearsay and misunderstanding of the facts. Then when we get the document, the document actually has a line in it that says unemotionally:

The removal of files from officers’ desks without explanation and their return without explanation or comment contributes to the feeling of mistrust and despondency.

I do not think there is any misunderstanding about what was the question first asked, the answer that was first given and now what has come out in the document.

Dr Kennedy: Mr Froud’s recollection is that that was not the entire question. We would like to take it on notice, as with other questions that have been in previous estimates where we have been told we did not provide something and we did.
Answer:

The original question was:

“Has Dr Kennedy received a letter or memorandum from the staff of the Registration Section which included a complaint that official files had been removed from staff work areas by a senior officer without being marked out to that officer and possibly altered without record being made of the alteration?”

Our written response stated:

“No.  This question appears to be based on hearsay or a misunderstanding of the facts.  Staff of the Registration Department did send a confidential memorandum to the Director, but the memorandum did not complain of a senior officer removing files, or of files being ‘possibly altered without record being made of the alteration’”.

The memorandum did not refer to a “senior officer” removing files, nor did it complain of files being “possibly altered without record being made of the alteration”. Hence the introductory comment that the question appeared to be based on hearsay or a misunderstanding of the facts.
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Question:  7

Topic:  Associate Registrar’s postion

Hansard Page : Page 155

Senator Schacht asked:

What were the number of applications you received for the Associate Registrar’s position then?

Answer:

One application when advertised on 10 March 2001.

Four applications when re-advertised on 19 May 2001.
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Question:  8

Topic:  Ombudsman’s report

Hansard Page : Page 158

Senator Schacht asked:

Fine. I have one last matter. The publication earlier this week of the Ombudsman’s report did raise questions that the handling of the issue of the work environment, because of the airconditioning, was not a spectacularly successful arrangement within the gallery, but I just wondered whether the gallery – I am not going to ask you to comment here because the report has just been received – will be responding publicly, in writing, via the estimates committee or somewhere to the comments and recommendations of the Ombudsman’s report.

(Dr Kennedy’s response was: Certainly, Senator, if you wish us to take that as a question on notice to provide a response, we will do so).

Answer:

The Gallery welcomed the Ombudsman’s report and accepted and is acting upon its one recommendation, that the NGA should continue to implement the Hennessy and Comcare recommendations, and continue to address those HVAC related issues raised by the Bligh Voller Nield Audit.
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Question:  29

Topic:  Staffing / Gallery enhancement / Airconditioning / New exhibition space

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The Hansard transcripts of December 2nd 1999 (ECITA 52) and February 10th 2000 (ECITA 63) record Mr Peter Gunning as Head of Facilities. In the NGA's staff telephone list of January 2000 Mr Gunning is listed as “Consultant – Finance” and Mr Rees is “Head of Facilities and Planning”. 

· Was Mr Gunning an employee of the Gallery and was his position Head of Facilities. If so provide documentation confirming his appointment to that position.

· At the May 2000 hearings of this Committee Dr Kennedy gave evidence that there was “a 2 million debt on the new wing” of the Gallery. Previously, in June 1998 he said “we had a $2 million debt on the new wing, we lost money on our exhibitions and we had to cut staff in order to do the contractual obligations to replace the boilers”. Which is correct?

· How many staff did you cut to pay for the boilers, and what were their positions?

· Dr Kennedy is reported as saying, at the time of its opening, that the new exhibition wing was completed “on budget and on time”. Provide copies of the original budgets and time tables and any amended budgets leading up to its opening.

Answer:

· Mr Gunning is not an employee of the National Gallery.   He has over a number of years rendered service to the Gallery as a consultant on a part-time basis.

· The final budget and cost of the exhibitions wing, opened in March 1998, was $9.56million, which was funded as follows:



$4.8million

Commonwealth Government



$2.0million

ACT Government



$2.76million

National Gallery



$9.56million

The Gallery’s need to contribute $2.76million towards the project was what Dr Kennedy was referring to when he referred to a $2million debt on the new wing. 

· It is not possible to directly ascribe particular positions as having been cut to pay for the boilers because the reduction in staffing expenditure was conducted on a whole-of-Gallery basis.   For a number of financial reasons, including the necessity to pay for new boilers, the Gallery had to reduce its staffing level in 1998.   The boilers were a significant cost which the Gallery had to meet from its resources.

· The exhibition wing was planned to open on 6 March 1998, and it did.   
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Question:  30

Topic:  Gallery statistics

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In the Agency Budget Statements, quantitative goals for loans and venues form a major part of output 2.1, that is “to provide access to and information about works of art”. The Gallery replied, in response to allegations of “rubbery figures” by John McDonald, that the figures for those benchmarks had been doubled. 

· Does the Director assist with the development of or approve NGA output targets for Agency Budget Statements? If so, explain in detail the basis of Dr Kennedy’s error in reporting publicly and to Senate Estimates (22/2/01) the doubling of travelling exhibitions.

· The Gallery has said that halving loan request times leads to a “doubling of previous availability”. Why has this doubling of availability not lead to a doubling of loans? 

· In April 2000, Chairman of the Gallery Council, Mr Harold Mitchell, said on Channel Nine’s “Sunday Program that the access program figures have been “vastly increased”. Provide figures substantiating this claim.

In the same correspondence from October 2000 referred to in Questions 014 and 015 above, Dr Kennedy claimed that   “Significant increase in Gallery merchandising and revenues from commercial activities” had been achieved. Figures from NGA annual reports appear to demonstrate a decline in 1997/98 a sharp dip in 1998/9 and a return to 1995/6 levels in 1999/00 (unadjusted for inflation).

On what basis was Dr Kennedy’s claim to have significantly increased revenues from commercial activities be made?

Answer:

The Gallery does not believe that an error has been made regarding the figures for travelling exhibitions.  The number of new exhibitions issued did double from four in 1996/97 to eight in 1999/2000 as per figures provided to the Director by our exhibition staff.  The Gallery has stated, however, that it would be wrong to assume that just because the number of exhibitions doubled in this set of years it thus doubled every year or in other years, or that the number of loans or the number of visitors to exhibitions therefore doubled.  The Gallery sought to clarify this matter in response to Question on Notice number 15, Senate Estimates (21/2/01).  The Gallery rejects the claim that its figures are ‘rubbery’.

The Gallery believes that it would be wrong to draw the conclusion that halving loan request times leads necessarily to a doubling of the number of loans.  It has, however, led to a very significant increase in the availability of the national collection throughout Australia.

The Chairman of the Gallery regards the performance of its staff in recent years as commendable in increasing the number of works of art loaned as follows:


1997/98

1,285


1998/99

1,423


1999/00

1,501


2000/01

over 1,600

The Gallery believes that it is unfortunate that attention has been focussed on a misreading of its figures instead of the achievement of its staff in responding to the requests for increased availability of the collection.

Reference to the Gallery’s financial statements included in the annual report for 1999/2000 reveals that revenue from Commercial Activities (Note 3 of Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements) in 1999/2000, was $6,544,000 compared to $2,809,000 in the previous (1998/99) year.  The claim that a “significant increase in Gallery merchandising and revenues from commercial activities” was a reasonable and correct statement to make.
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Question:  31

Topic:  Ms Jane Douglas

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In response to the question on notice (30/11/01) relating to Ms Jane Douglas’s termination of contract on the last working day before Dr Kennedy took office “Did [you] receive any offer or request by Ms Douglas to discuss her termination, and what was [your] response? the NGA responded “Dr Kennedy has no recollection of receiving such an offer.  A search of Gallery’s files did not reveal evidence of such an offer”. 

· Why is the National Gallery unable to find the opening correspondence of a legal case which cost the institution nearly $200,000?

· Who made the decision to terminate Ms Douglas’ contract and for what reason and what reason was Ms Douglas given.

Answer:

· The opening correspondence on the Gallery’s file dealing with the legal case initiated by Ms Douglas was a letter from Ms Douglas’ solicitors dated 5 September 1997.  There is no record on Gallery files of any offer or request from Ms Douglas to discuss her termination.  Ms Douglas’ employment with the Gallery was terminated on 22 August 1997.  Dr Kennedy commenced his term as Director of the Gallery on 8 September 1997.

· The decision to terminate Ms Douglas’ employment was taken by the then Assistant Director (Corporate Services) acting under authority delegated by the National Gallery of Australia Council.  The reason for terminating Ms Douglas’ employment and the reason given to Ms Douglas for the termination was that her “services are no longer required”.
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Question:  32

Topic:  Ms Jane Douglas

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In evidence before this Committee on November 30th 2000 in relation to Ms Douglas’s case Mr Froud stated that the “action was settled out of court and one of the terms of settlement specifically at Ms Douglas’s insistence was that these matters were not to be discussed”. However in an email dated March 7 2001 to Mr Froud and copied to Senator Schacht, Ms Douglas states: “If you are under the erroneous impression that it was my idea to enclose a term of Non-Disclosure, you have been misled by your memory of events.  Your claim to Senator Schacht is unsupported by any facts or documents to verify such a claim and therefore you are misleading his committee by providing such information”

· Is Ms Douglas correct to claim that the Gallery insisted on the confidentiality clause in the Deed of Settlement as a condition of entering into a settlement, and that this was separate from a subsidiary condition imposed by Ms Douglas that personal information illegally sought and obtained without her permission by a senior Gallery official, would be protected by a non-destruction order until 2020 and remain confidential.

· For what reason did a senior Gallery officer seek personal information about Ms Douglas without her permission after her contract had been terminated, and on whose advice was this action taken?
Answer:

· Ms Douglas is correct to claim that the confidentiality clause included in the Deed of Settlement was proposed by the Gallery’s legal advisers.  Mr Froud did at the Estimates Committee hearing on 30 November 2000 confuse Ms Douglas’ request for specified personal information to be treated in strict confidence with the confidentiality clause included in the Deed of Settlement.  There was no intention to mislead the Committee and Mr Froud apologises for this mistake in his evidence. The settlement of this matter had occurred more than one year before the Estimates Committee hearing.

· Information was sought regarding Ms Douglas in connection with a legal matter initiated by Ms Douglas.  The information was not sought illegally as has been claimed.  The information was sought by a Gallery officer who is no longer employed by the Gallery and was not acting on the advice of any other Gallery officer.
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Question: 33

Output: 2.2 – Information about and promotion of works of art

Topic:  Plagiarism allegation

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The Gallery was asked on notice (Q 183, 30/11/00) “which staff, former staff and/or contractors or consultants did the plagiarism allegations concern?”. The Gallery’s response was “Legal expenses incurred in 1997/98 included advice regarding plagiarism allegations concerning a former member of Gallery staff”.
· Who accused whom of plagiarism, what was the substance of that accusation and which work and Author was alleged to have been plagiarised?

· What legal action or advice was taken or received in relation to the matter?

Answer:

It was alleged that one member of staff had accused another member of staff of plagiarism.  The work and author alleged to have been plagiarised were not identified.  

The allegation was denied categorically.

The Gallery obtained legal advice relating to the negotiated departure of one member of staff.

The Gallery has not identified the members of staff concerned, in the interests of privacy.
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Question:  34

Topic:  Records management

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In response to question Q198 on notice to the effect that “a complaint that official files had been removed from staff work areas by a senior officer without being marked out to that officer and possibly altered without record being made of the alteration?” the Gallery responded: “This question appears to be based on hearsay or a misunderstanding of the facts. Staff of the Registration Department did send a confidential memorandum to the Director, but the memorandum did not complain of a senior officer removing files, or of files being “possibly altered without record being made of the alteration””.

The memorandum in question contained the sentence “The removal of files from officers desks without explanation, and then their return without explanation or comment, contributes to the feelings of mistrust and despondency”

· In subsequent meetings with Management and Human Resources did staff express concern about removal of files from their desks by a senior officer and if so who was alleged to have removed the files. 

What reason did Registration staff give for expressing despondency and mistrust and was this part of a wider concern about documentation within the department? If so what were those concerns?

Answer:

· The Head of Human Resource Management met with the staff of Registration Department on 14 September 2000.  The meeting was called not to resolve specifically the issues listed in the memorandum of 8 September, but rather to explore ways of moving forward and of developing an environment that would be conducive to preventing such issues.  

There is no recollection that at that meeting, or at the numerous meetings that have since taken place, that the removal of files was discussed.  

· The reasons Registration staff gave for “expressing despondency and mistrust” are contained throughout their memorandum. 

Since that time there has been an opportunity for Gallery management and Registration staff to discuss a range of issues relating to the management and operations of the Department, and the collaborative nature of those discussions and actions taken show no evidence of expressions of despondency or mistrust.

Issues discussed included:

· adequacy of storage facilities;

· filling of vacant positions;

· awareness and adequacy of policies and procedures; and

· review of work practices and processes.

All of these issues are being addressed and Registration staff have been kept informed of progress.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance 



Question:  35

Topic:  Collection Maintenance

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Responding to question on notice 210, November 30 2000 the Gallery replied that it “is not aware of the alleged advice that there is “… insufficient opportunity or support to adequately train staff in safe art handling techniques”, and would not share this view in any case.” However a (draft) memorandum to Management “Functions and  Workload of the Storage Installations and Packing Staff in response to Management’s proposed restructure in early 1999,  states “There are concerns that there is not time in a busy work load, to find time to set aside for training for multi-skilling let alone for the training of other staff members in art handling”

The NGA’s Preventative Conservator comments in another memorandum from Elizabeth Page to Head of Conservation, April 9 1998, under the heading of “Standards or lack thereof” that “warehouse staff have taken on the role of Registration staff by default, without adequate skills, knowledge or training….  It is just insane that people with no expertise have been passed on responsibility for collections management” and continues “Increases in workloads of staff and number of contract staff has met with decline in standards of care. Most damage occurs during hectic changeovers when staff are pressured and tired”

· In view of the memoranda above, why was NGA Management not aware of staff dissatisfaction with the level of training able to be given to staff and contractors handling art.  

· When did NGA Management receive the memoranda above, to whom were they addressed and how did Management respond to both? Provide any response to the memoranda.

· What process does the NGA follow in response to urgent professional advice concerning the safety of the National Collection.

· Provide a list of issues presented to Management by Registration staff at the time of a stop work meeting in May 200, and  provide details of the consultation process which the NGA has said was already underway at the time of the action.

Answer:

· The memorandum in question was prepared by some members of the Registration staff to focus discussions between staff, their union representatives, and Gallery management at a time when consideration was being given to restructuring the Registration department.  In the discussion that followed, staffing structures and levels sought by staff and unions were agreed.  The memorandum was used in discussions and issues were discussed and responded to orally.  In the circumstances, no written response was necessary

· The Gallery always considers advice concerning the safety of the National Collection and, after due consideration, takes appropriate action if required.

· There were 4 issues:

1. An agreed model for staff impact statements that deal with major peaks in workloads around major exhibitions and travelling exhibitions.

2. An agreed implementation plan for the 6-month lead time for loans.

3. An agreed timeframe for the filling of all vacant positions in Registration.

4. Agreement on strategies to improve art storage.

At the time of the action (9 May 2001), there was extensive consultation underway.

At a meeting with Registration staff on 9 March 2001, management advised that it was proceeding with a full review of the Registration Department, and given the other priorities on which the HRM Department was already engaged, the review would be conducted by a consultant. 

The firm Effective People was engaged on 20 April 2001.  The review was to be conducted in 2 stages.  The first stage was to scope the extent of the issues, and was to be completed by 4 May 2001.  The second stage would commence following an assessment of the issues identified in stage 1.

The report on stage 1 was finalised on the due date of 4 May, and received in the Gallery on Monday 7 May 2001.

On 2 May 2001 the CPSU wrote requesting, inter alia, the opportunity for Registration staff to comment on the scoping review before it was finalised.  It was always the Gallery’s intention that the staff did comment on the scoping review, and the Gallery responded to the CPSU on 3 May 2001 that “…we will consult with Registration staff to ensure we have picked up their concerns.”

On Friday 4 May 2001, the CPSU lodged a notice to engage in industrial action on Wednesday 9 May 2001.  Discussions between management and the CPSU on 4 May 2001 failed to prevent the planned action proceeding.

On 8 May 2001 the Director reminded all Registration staff via email that the 6 months loan lead time had already been implemented, (issue no 2 of the industrial action), that this had been publicised on 20 April 2001, and had been in “…direct response to feedback from [Registration staff]…”.  

On 8 May 2001, the Head of Human Resource Management met with Registration staff to discuss the report on stage 1 of the review.  Their suggestions for changes to the proposed terms of reference for the full review were accepted, and they were invited to nominate 3 representatives to assist the consultant with stage 2 of the review, and to form part of the Steering Committee.

In addition to the consultation detailed above, there were numerous meetings involving either only Registration staff, or management as well, where action was taken on various issues identified in the September 2000 memorandum.  Not all of these are documented, but they covered issues such as: identification of training needs; review of partial performance higher duties allowances; review of the continuation of temporary staff placements; OH&S assessments of work-stations; provision of new furniture; and involvement of Registration staff in development of policies and procedures.
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Question:  36

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In May last year Mr Rees gave evidence to the Senate Estimates Committee, in relation to funding for maintenance of the Gallery air conditioning system that “I can certainly assure you he is under no pressure in terms of funding. There are adequate funds for the maintenance of those systems” (ECITA 27, May 22, 2000). Responding to advice from the Environment Officer on the 23rd of April 1998 that she wanted Mr Rees to look at a work of art which was “a case in point of the damage being caused by the ongoing deposition of fatty acid and other particulate material from unclean air conditioning duct work”, Mr Rees said  “I am aware you have bid for money to clean ducts and balance the air flows. The reality is that unless we get additional funding for backlog maintenance, there is no way the work can be funded in 1998-99”

· Explain this apparent contradiction when the context of the questioning by Senators Lundy and Schacht was allegations of long term neglect of, and damage to, the Gallery HVAC plant.

· What changes were made to the duct cleaning schedules between the end of financial year 1999 and May 2000? Provide a time line.

· Did Mr Rees accept the Environments Officer’s offer to inspect the damaged painting, was the Executive notified of the damage as recommended by Ms Page

· Outline the Executive’s response to the damage and provide any documents relating to it and the problem with the duct-work.

· The Environments officer notes that “the problem has been known of for some years” and refers to an analysis of the black contaminant in 1994. Why was funding not provided to clean the ducts during the financial years 1996/7 & 1998/99 referred to by Mr Rees.

· What maintenance tasks comprised the backlog referred to by Mr Rees?

· Provide all documents, including complaints, advice, technical studies and cleaning regimes relating to the cleanliness and maintenance of the duct work from January 1993 to January 2000.

· Was advice sought regarding possible health effects of maintaining duct work in such a condition, and if not, why not? If such advice was sought, provide any documents relating to it.

What professional and trade qualifications does the Environments Officer and the Manager Facilities and Planning have and what did Mr Rees mean when he wrote to Ms  Page saying “I am also aware that you hacv not aware”  (sic).
Answer:

· There was a period of two years between the May 1998 e-mail and the May 2000 Senate Estimates committee response.  Both answers were correct.  There is no contradiction, because the funding positions for air conditioning expenditure were very different at each point in time, as was the context of the discussions at the time the questions were asked.

· The Gallery does not recall making any particular changes to the program during the period in question.

· Mr Rees did not inspect the painting and the Executive was not notified.


· Investigations as to the possible cause and appropriate approach to addressing the deposits are ongoing.  The question implies that the fatty acid deposits etc. were related to the operation and maintenance of the air conditioning systems.  At Page 18 of the AHA Management Report of October 2000 “The ERMA tests found no airborne fatty acids suggesting that the problem can not be attributed to the operation of the air conditioning systems.”

· The Gallery will clean the ducts as part of the major upgrade of the HVAC system.

· Mr Rees was referring to maintenance covering many parts of the building’s fabric, fixtures and fittings, plant and systems.  He recalls it being a general statement about a quantity of building maintenance that was needed at the time. His thinking was of course confirmed subsequently when the May 1999 Building Audit Report was received.  The audit pointed to a number of maintenance matters.

· Due to the time period covered by the question, the manner of record keeping, the changed nature of the maintenance practices, the departure of many staff over time with day-to-day responsibility for the maintenance of the air conditioning systems the Gallery is unable to provide the documents sought.

· The AHA Management Report of October 2000 advised that whilst identifying the existence of a number risk factors in relation to the air conditioning systems, the investigator concluded that the risk factors did not manifest themselves as occupational health and safety (OH&S) incidents during the period of the investigation.  


· Professional and trade qualifications according to Gallery records are as follows:

Environmental Officer (Elizabeth Radford):


Bachelor of Applied Science in the Conservation of Cultural Materials, University of Canberra, 1993

Head of Facilities and Planning (Phil Rees):

Bachelor of Arts (Accounting), Canberra College of Advanced Education

Mr Rees believes it might have been a typo, given that the sentence does not make sense.
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Question:  37

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Replying to Q 006, Hansard ECITA P 110 (22 Feb 2001), Mr Froud reiterated advice given before the Senate Estimates Committee in November 2000, in the context of the NGA’s air conditioning system, that although there were no recommendations contained within the report, Mr Cox “suggested” that weekend general cleaning employment practices be reviewed.  However on page 23 of the report Mr Cox advises that “The saturation system using re-cycled water is banned in France. This is the system we have in our building”; and “water treatment in these systems are essential to minimise the formation of scale and the possibility of bacteria being carried into the air stream. This requires the use of biocides to control the bacteria. This is not considered good practice by many professionals because of the direct contact with air to be distributed around the building” and recommends or suggests that “one can foresee the day when there will have to be millions of dollars spent on our air conditioning system to overcome the problems associated with our system.

· Why did Mr Froud emphasise weekend cleaning arrangements rather than Mr Cox’s advice concerning the inherent dangers of a system “we have in our building” and those associated with the biocides and cleaning agents required to maintain it?

· Did Management note the comments contained in the report, and if so what action was taken at the time to examine and act upon Mr Cox’s advice.

Answer:

There were no recommendations in Mr Cox’s report.   In the absence of any recommendations, the Gallery’s response to Question 6 (22.2.01) cited the suggestion made by Mr Cox that the Gallery examine its weekend cleaning practices as this was a matter that had been acted upon. 

At the time of receipt, comments in Mr Cox’s report were noted. Since 1996 the Gallery has made several changes to its air conditioning maintenance practices.  To this end, the Gallery has changed maintenance arrangements and moved to undertake more maintenance using Gallery staff; introduced hydrogen peroxide as a cleaning coil cleaning agent on advice from experts; conducted a building audit; and is currently out to tender to upgrade its air conditioning systems.
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Question:  38

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The Commonwealth Ombudsman has reported that in his opinion it was “unreasonable to allow this identified OH&S hazard [of pooling of water from the spray system referred to by Mr Cox] to continue between 1995 and 1999”.  

· Was the Deputy Director and/or Assistant Director aware of the contents of the 1995 Honeywell/Joint House report and Mr Cox’s 1996 “Visit Report” and if so why did Management fail to commission a full legionella risk assessment in spite of the safety concerns expressed in both?

· Why was the recommended legionella assessment not conducted after the discovery of  legionella levels in excess of recommended danger and/or action concentrations in 1995/6 and late 1999.

Does the NGA perceive any conflict of interest between Messrs Cox and Sitauti’s membership of the OH&S Committee and the former’s membership of the Joint Consultative Committee,  and their responsibility for air conditioning maintenance over a period when the Commonwealth Ombudsman has strongly criticised the Gallery for knowingly neglecting the air conditioning maintenance. Has the NGA taken any action to avoid such conflicts of interest on this committee and the Joint Consultative Committee?

Answer:

· The Deputy Director, and then Assistant Director (Corporate Services), were aware of the existence of the reports.  The position of Assistant Director (Corporate Services) was abolished in 1998.  The Gallery has advised the Ombudsman that due to changes in personnel, it is not able to establish why the legionella risk assessment undertaken in 1995 looked at cooling tower operation only, but it is possible that AHUs were not included as they were thought to be a very low risk given the temperature of water in those areas.

· The instances of elevated legionella count referred to occurred in the Gallery’s cooling tower.  A legionella risk assessment was conducted for the cooling towers in 1995.   The Gallery has in place regular monitoring of legionella count.

The Gallery did and does not perceive a conflict of interest.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  39

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

On March 9 the Environments Officer, Ms Page, advised Mr Rees, Manager Facilities and Planning, in  her “Statement by Preventive Conservator in relation to claims made by a person to Comcare”,  that she agreed with Mr Brian Cropp’s advice to Comcare that the HVAC system contained “1. Mould , fungi, bacterial , viral , and other micro-organism contamination of HVAC systems air handling plants and ductwork” ….and …. “Our environments person has also grave concerns about this problem and keeps getting fed lots of irrelevant information and baffling conclusions which are an insult to her intelligence.”. Ms Page wrote that “the first part of the claim [above] is correct although I may not have personally used the adjective “grave”.

· Was Dr Kennedy aware of this advice from the Environment’s officer on May 22nd when he said “There is no issue here, that has been proved” in relation to inquires by Senators Schacht and Lundy about the safety of the air conditioning and when he stated in a global staff memorandum on the day after the May 22nd Senate Estimates Hearings that there was “no evidence contaminants had entered the air conditioning system”

· In view of the following transcript (ECITA 272, 22/5/00), why did the NGA reply in Question 144 on notice 30/11/00, that “The Gallery does not recall having made statements denying mould is present within the building”

Mr Froud- I do not believe there has been any mould”

Senator Schacht- There has not been any mould?

Mr Froud – No

Senator SCHACHT—So you are saying, Mr Rees, that you have never accepted that mould has been found inside the system in the last, say, three to five years?

Mr Rees—I have been at the gallery for only three years. There is a range of views about dampness. I am not aware of having commissioned any investigation of mould.

Answer:

· A copy of the Preventive Conservator’s 9 March 2000 Statement was not forwarded to Dr Kennedy.  

· Question 144 of 30/11/00 asked: In the light of all of this evidence and statements by Cropp, Robinson, Hennessy and references to mould within the Hennessy report does the NGA still deny a history of mould within the building?

The quoted words of the transcript ECITA 272, 25/5/00 was in the context of a discussion about air conditioning environment, and not the building as a whole.

The response “The Gallery does not recall having made statements denying mould is present within the building” was, and is, correct in the context of Question 144 of 30/11/00. 

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  40

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The NGA provided a memo in reply to Q 205 30/11/00, ECITA Vol 7 pp 100 – 163 containing approximately 60 pages of complaints and references to complaints by the Environment’s Officer during the period 1999 – 2000, which included references to “staff hysteria” on the subject however in evidence to the Estimates Committee on May 4th 2000 Dr Kennedy stated:  “You mention complaints by staff. I am not sure what they are”.

· At a time when Gallery air conditioning maintenance was the subject of intense public scrutiny, why was Dr Kennedy not aware of the existence and/or nature of these complaints?

What response does the NGA have to the former Acting Head of Conservation, Geoffrey Major’s, statement on the Sunday Program in April that he had to send staff home because of Air Conditioning related illness?

Answer:

The contents of the March 2000 memorandum from the Preventative Conservator to the Facilities Manager had not been brought to the attention of the Director by the Senate Estimate Hearing date of 25 May 2000 (not 4 May 2000).

The Gallery would need to understand who was sent home, when and to sight any medical evidence that the matter related to air conditioning before it could consider a response to the question.  Mr Major is no longer an employee of the National Gallery.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  41

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art

Topic:  Consultants fees

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Consultants fees in annual reports 1998/99 – 1999/00 compared with the total given in response to Question 16 On Notice Feb 22 2001 differ. There is a gap between the two sets of figures for 1999/2000 and for the previous year of $600,960 and $113,837 respectively – the figures provided to the Committee being the lower in both cases.

· Account fully for the difference between the figures in the two sets of documents – for example a list of contractors and fees for contractors under $2000 if that is the explanation, and explain the difference in magnitude of the discrepancy between the gaps ($600,960 & $113,837) for the two years.

· Explain why is there no fee listed for the services of Mr Steven Hennessy (AHA Engineering) in 1999/00, and provide the amount spent on his services to date.

The 1999/00 list contains a figure of $13,060 to Geoff Fenwick for “counselling”. Did Mr Fenwick’s services for which this fee was paid include negotiation of out of court settlements for staff or ex staff and fees for representing a former employee during a dispute with the Gallery.

Answer:

· The difference between the figures provided in the Gallery’s annual reports for 1998/99 and 1999/00 and those provided in response to Question 16 on Notice (22.2.01) relates to different groups of expenses (natural account codes) from the Gallery Financial Management Information System (FMIS) being applied. In the case of the annual reports, the natural account codes for Consultants Fees, Contractor Services, Budget Contractors Level, Architects Fees, Legal Fees and Market Surveys, were applied. In the case of the response to Question 16 on Notice, only account codes for Consultants Fees and Contractor Services were applied.  We apologise for the inconsistent approach which has confused the issue.

The difference between the two sets of figures is made up of:


1998/99
1999/00

Foundation expenses
-
17,000

Architect Fees
-
193,971

Legal Fees
45,000
233,928

Market Surveys
13,548
30,723

Other
17,669
44,782

Expenses under $2,000
37,620
80,556


113,837
600,960


113,837
600,960

· There was no fee for AHA Management included in the report, as costs were coded to “HVAC maintenance” and not “contractors fees”.  Total expenditure on fees payable to AHA Management to 30 June 2001 total $52,400 (GST exclusive).

· Yes the fees paid to Mr Fenwick included services rendered in respect of private mediation of matters in dispute with a then employee (now former employee) and a former employee.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  42

Topic:  Quarantine arrangements

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Dr Kennedy gave evidence in Senate Estimates in relation to Gallery quarantine arrangements (ECITA 24425/5/00)  “We have a highly professional staff which over many years has established routines to establish such a place”. 

In an internal NGA memorandum dated 9th April 1998 (provided in reply to Q 205, 30/11/01) Preventive Conservator, Ms Page, writes “Efforts to complete the NGA’s application for Approved Quarantine Directive Status have been stymied by a lack of adequate support by management to permit relevant staff the time to complete the task (it is something the Preventive Conservator and Assistant Registrar do as an extra project in whatever time is available).  Three separate proposals have been submitted for the creation of a dedicated quarantine with relatively low cost in-house treatment programs using non-chemical control methods, and it has been incorporated into the IPMP (integrated pest management plan), but so far there has been no action on the issue” Ms Page also says there had already been pest infestations as a result of unsatisfactory quarantine arrangements.

· Provide copies of the three proposals and any response by Management including the Collection Services Manager and Registrar.

· Why has Management not given highest priority to the provision of resources to solve urgent problems likely to result in damage to the National Collection?

· Does the NGA yet have a dedicated quarantine area which is not also used as a thoroughfare, and has the Integrated Pest Management Scheme including non-chemical pest control methods been fully implemented? 

· If the non-chemical pest control means have been implemented and a secure quarantine area established provide plans of their locations and when this occurred.

· In the same document there is reference to mould growth in the textile cabinets. Has the Gallery considered that mould growing in the HVAC plant downstream of the filters has led to a general distribution of spores throughout the Parkes Building and what research has been carried out to determine the distribution, nature, extent and possible consequences of this problem.

· Provide details of the insect infestations referred to in the document – date, type and origin of the insects, what action was taken to eliminate the infestation and any documents associated with the occurrences.

Answer:

· Three proposals were made by the Preventive Conservator for a dedicated 'quarantine' area in May 1996, June 1996 and November 1997.  Copies of these proposals are attached.

In response to the 1997 proposal, a freezer was purchased in November 1997, and a number of actions were carried out which demonstrate support for improvement to pest control.  ‘Ageless’ oxygen scavenging equipment and supplies were purchased after 1998 and a formal acceptance of an Integrated Pest Management Plan by NGA Council in 1995 and revision, which was approved by NGA Council on 22 April 1998.  

A directive by Dr Kennedy on 6 January 1999 by ‘global’ e-mail reminded staff about the importance of the Integrated Pest Management Plan and specifically mentioned controls on eating, drinking and flowers (in response to long-term problems with ants that arose in an area previously approved for food service).  

· NGA has three areas approved by AQIS for Quarantine purposes, one in the Registration area and one in the Extension gallery (AQIS approval given 1 June 1998) and the off site storage area).  AQIS inspected the offsite quarantine facilities in October 2000 with the Preventive Conservator (Lizi Radford) and Art-Handling coordinator (Jennifer Storer).  These areas meet AQIS requirements for safe inspection of imported materials.  The Gallery has been approved by AQIS as a Place for the Performance of Quarantine since 1997.

Integrated Pest Management is achieved through a variety of measures including two internationally accepted methods used to control pests in works of art: freezing (achieved with a large freezer to -18(C) and low oxygen facilities are available.  Freezing is the most commonly used and has been used on a regular basis for suspected infestations and on a few occasions when actual infestations were detected during pest surveys which are another element of the Integrated Pest Management Plan.
· Non chemical treatments: Depending on the composition and sensitivity of the affected work of art, NGA uses freezing to treat infested objects in preference to off-site fumigation with methyl bromide, although either treatment satisfies AQIS.  Although low oxygen treatment is proven as an effective technique to kill infestations of museum pests, low oxygen treatment is currently not approved as a treatment by AQIS as they do not currently have sufficient evidence that it kills all life stages of all organisms (viruses) they are concerned about.

NGA satisfies AQIS requirements for quarantine pest control and we have developed a good professional relationship with AQIS staff in dealing with our specialist requirements in working on importations of works of art for international exhibitions.  Procedures for importation of works of art were approved in conjunction with AQIS were updated on 26 May 1999.

· The Quarantine area is secure with access controlled by proximity card and is close to the Security Control Room and the area for the receipt of works of art.  With the Gallery receiving an increasing volume of international shipments, preparations for relocating and redeveloping Quarantine facilities to include a larger freezer and improve accommodation of associated equipment is being developed in consultation with the architects as part of the Gallery Enhancement project.   A plan of the location of the Quarantine area has not been provided for security reasons.   The Gallery would be happy to show the area to the Senator should he wish to visit the Gallery.

· In the 19 years that the textile store has been located at Parkes there have been two minor incidents of mould activity.

-
A leather book with fabric samples (part of the Julian Robinson collection) was stored in the bottom drawer of a small storage cabinet.  During a routine insect inspection in September 1997 mould was detected on small areas of the leather cover.  Humidity tests showed this drawer had relative humidity of 64%, which is 9% higher than international accepted standards.  Surrounding drawers were within the normal humidity range (45-55%).  It was noted the drawer unit was located above warm water pipes (there was a 30cm sheet of concrete between the cabinet and the pipes), and this cabinet had not been raised above the floor.  The book was treated, the cabinet raised and no re-occurrence of mould has ever been detected.

-
The second incidence was in May 1999 when several cardboard mannequin boxes were mistakenly placed directly against the northern wall in the store (this is an external wall).  The boxes and the wall had extensive mould when discovered.  In this instance the display boxes were placed against the wall and as they were flush against the wall, the boxes acted as a condensation buffer. The boxes were destroyed, the walls were cleaned, and staff were advised not to place anything against the wall and no mould activity has ever returned.  No collection items were damaged.

These two incidents are isolated and the result of specific environmental conditions and the evidence does not support contamination by spores from the AHU.  The action taken has resolved the problem and whereas if the problem was in the AHU the problem would be likely to recur.  The textiles within the Parkes store are regularly monitored and the problem has not recurred.

· The document referred to in the question does not mention any specific dates or incidents, which makes it difficult to respond to the question.  A record of insect incidents is maintained by Conservation staff to separately record insects detected in the building.  The record also lists the treatments carried out to kill pests detected.

Regular pest surveys are carried out by the Preventive Conservator in the storage and display areas to ensure that pests are not spread within the building.  This is documented in the NGA Pest Control Schedule and includes regular perimeter spray treatments and checking of rodent and insect traps.  If pests are detected in the building the works of art in proximity are inspected then ‘area’ treatments are carried out immediately by trained pest contractors, after the affected items are safely isolated from the rest of the collection.  If pests are detected on works of art, they are treated by conservators.  A thorough survey is carried out in areas where infestations are detected.

ATTACHMENTS

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  43

Topic:  Monet & Japan visitor numbers

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In the Canberra Times Letters to the Editor (7/6/01) a visitor to the Monet in Japan exhibition claimed that 12,000 people visited the exhibition in seven hours and asked “what are the laws for maximum occupancy for a public building in the ACT? I can assure you as I was jostled that all safety and fire-hazard laws were well and truly broken in the name of financial gain”

· Provide hourly occupancy figures for the Monet exhibition gallery (new extension) over the weekend prior to the publication of this letter.

· Provide copies of the Gallery’s compliance certificates for floor loadings, air conditioning plant in relation to air supply per person,  fire safety/evacuation occupancy ratings for each exhibition space and Gallery policies and procedures for ensuring compliance with those ratings.


How did the Gallery ensure that the specified occupancy ratings were not exceeded during the Monet in Japan exhibition?
Answer:

The Gallery is not aware of the reader’s basis for the claim.  Nor is the Gallery aware of the qualifications of the person making the statement.

· The Gallery does not maintain records of hourly occupancy levels.   Over the weekend prior to the publication of this letter, daily attendances to the Gallery were:

Saturday 2.6.01 (9.30am to 8pm) 
11,980

Sunday   3.6.01 (9.30am to 5pm)
  8,290

Not all visitors attended the Monet & Japan exhibition.

· The required outside air per person is 7.5 litres/second.  The carbon-dioxide level is monitored by a CO2 sensor installed in the return-air duct. The CO2 set point is 800 ppm.  If the set point is reached, exhaust fans automatically come and exhaust the air from all the spaces.  This action also increases the outside air intake of the system.  Attached is a copy of the Executive Summary from the Fire and Life Safety Modelling Report prepared in February 1998.  Attached is an edited extract of the Gallery’s “Galleries Security Operating Procedures” (the editing is to ensure sensitive security information is not available on the public record).
· With due regard to the need to maintain a safe environment for visitors and the art, well trained staff make judgements as to how many people can be accommodated in any one space at any one time.

ATTACHMENT

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  44

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page: Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

What does the Gallery estimate to be the cost at today’s prices of a reduction in the useful life of the air conditioning plant by between five and ten years estimated by Mr Clive Broadbent as reported by the Commonwealth Ombudsman.

Answer:

The Gallery has not sought to establish such an estimate of cost, nor has it sought clarification of the comment made by Mr Broadbent to the Commonwealth Ombudsman.   It would be very difficult to establish such a cost estimate which would need to be based on many subjective elements.   The comprehensive review of the Gallery’s HVAC system undertaken by AHA Management, completed in October 2000, resulted in a number of measures being identified as being in need of attention.   All these measures are being acted upon.

The Gallery believes that funds are better directed at addressing issues identified than in securing an estimate of cost for what at best would be a subjective claim about comparative life expectancies of the Gallery’s HVAC system.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  45

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

What is the Gallery’s response to Mr Broadbent’s opinion that the maintenance of the HVAC plant was ‘the maintenance [of the NGA HVAC system] has been unsatisfactory for the high standards expected at such a site and has responsibility been identified for not achieving a level of maintenance suitable to an art gallery? What action does the Gallery plan to take in relation to any finding of responsibility for those matters?

Answer:

The Gallery notes Mr Broadbent’s opinion.

The Gallery has implemented measures to improve the HVAC system and maintenance processes.

The Gallery plans no action against any current or former officer or contractor associated with air conditioning maintenance.  It would be extremely difficult to prove, in retrospect, that any one officer or contractor, or group of officers or contractors, were responsible for any unsatisfactory outcomes.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  46

Topic:  Gallery maintenance

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In the light of the Ombudsman’s criticisms, is the Gallery satisfied that the Managers responsible for the planning and maintenance of the building have sufficient qualifications and experiences and that senior Management are able to ensure that best practice is achieved in respect of the future maintenance of the building?

Answer:

Yes.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  47

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Are the same Managers who supervised the deterioration of the existing plant, that is the Deputy Director, Head of Planning and Facilities and the Manager and Assistant Manager of  Facilities involved in the building renovation plan and is the Gallery satisfied they have the qualifications, experience and record of achievement required for such an ambitions project?

Answer:

The Gallery does not agree with the statement that the specified Managers supervised the deterioration of the existing plant.

The staff concerned, assisted by contracted technical experts, have the capacity to manage and operate the Gallery building appropriately.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  48

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Is the Gallery aware that the building is on its Inventory as a “work of art” and what processes has the Gallery instigated to ensure that the proposed new works do not compromise this status?

Answer:


The Gallery building is not listed as an item on its Inventory as a work of art.  

The Gallery has appointed an architect and several specialist consultants to provide a range of advice concerning the planned changes.  Any changes proposed to the building will be the subject of a rigorous process of review by the Gallery, the Heritage Commission, the National Capital Authority and a Joint House Committee of the Australian Parliament.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  49

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Dr Kennedy advised that the Gallery was consulting with the original architect in good will. When did the Gallery first show Mr Madigan the proposals?

Answer:

22 May 2001.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  50

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Did Dr Kennedy write or telephone or speak to Mr Madigan regarding the proposals prior to their approval by the NCA and if so when, where and how?

Prior to consulting with Mr Madigan had Dr Kennedy received any letters from Mr Madigan to which he had not replied?

Answer:

The NCA has not approved the Gallery’s application for works approval.  Dr Kennedy has written to and spoken with Mr Madigan on many occasions between 1997 and 2001.

No, Dr Kennedy has replied to all of Mr Madigan's letters.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question: 51

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Has the NGA, in its own view, behaved in a manner that represented “good will” under the new Legislation of the Moral Rights Act of 2000? And if so how is this documented?

Answer:

The Gallery has been consulting with the original architect in “good faith” under the moral rights amendments to the Copyright Act (1968) and will maintain appropriate documentation of the process of consultation.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  52

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Had the NGA at any time instructed the new architects of the work to not speak, consult or communicate with the original architect? If not, what formal meetings were held between the two architects?

Answer:

No.  The first formal meeting between Mr Madigan and Tonkin Zulaikha Greer took place on 19 June 2001.   Informal meetings had taken place previously.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question: 53

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

How much more exhibition space is provided by the new works?

Answer:

The proposed plans provide an additional 850m2 in new gallery space and 830m2 in new foyer spaces, both of which could be used for additional exhibition space, depending on what is planned to be displayed.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  54

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

If financing the new works comes from future funds, including depreciation under the Accrual Accounting Scheme, that would otherwise pay for maintenance of the existing structure, has the Gallery taken advice on how this will affect maintenance and what are the results?

Answer:

In the accrual budgeting regime, output prices fund repair and maintenance.  Depreciation funding is to be applied for capital purposes and not for repair and maintenance.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  55

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Provide details of cost and plans for the full $69 million “Master Plan”.

Answer:

The $26.1M difference between the cost of the proposed Stage1 modifications works program ($42.9M) and the “Master Plan” ($69M) provides for expenditure to make further modifications to the National Gallery of Australia building and site. Modifications to the building would include expanded research and education facilities and additional facilities for the public, staff and collection storage.  Modifications to the site would see new gardens and expanded opportunities for the display of sculpture and modifications to the road system.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  56

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In the process to find an architect, what was the cost of the international competition, provide responses from that competition and explain why there was a second process to shortlist Australian architects.

Answer:

· Nil.   There was no international competition

· There was no second process to short list Australian architects.

The process of selecting a Managing Architect entailed advertising in the Australian national press, on the Gallery’s website, and by writing to architectural practices and organisations.   Expressions of interest from suitably qualified and experienced consortia were sought.   Following assessment of responses, eight firms (all Australian) were short listed and invited, after being briefed by the Gallery, to consider issues and make a presentation to a panel of their understanding of the issues and their capacity to work with the Gallery in appropriately responding to medium and long term issues and opportunities.   The process for selecting a managing architect has been complemented upon by the Royal Australian Institute of Architects and members of the architectural profession.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  57

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In the process used to procure an architect for the building, did the NGA indicate to the competitors that the Gallery would involve the original architects?

Answer:

No.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  58

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Prior to the competition did Colin Madigan write to the Director at letter outlining critical aspects of the building and how specifically were Mr Madigan’s views incorporated into the current designs and conservation plan?

Answer:

There was correspondence from Mr Madigan to the Gallery, outlining critical aspects of the building, that pre-dates the commencement of the Managing Architect Selection Process. 

The Gallery is currently engaged in a process of consultation with both the original and selected managing architect, which includes discussion of Mr Madigan’s proposals.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  59

Topic:  Gallery enhancement

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Is the Gallery aware that a road sign could direct all visitors to the already existing entrance which consists of a grand staircase and escalators and that the south surface car-park could be removed. Explain why plans based on this or similar proposals have been dropped.

Answer:

The Gallery is aware that it is possible that a road sign could be installed to seek to direct all visitors to the base of the grand staircase and escalators.  The Gallery is aware that the south surface car park could be removed. 

The consultation process involving the original architect and the appointed managing architect will include consideration of a scheme developed by the original architect, Mr Madigan.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of Art



      Question:  60

Output: 2.2 – Information about and promotion of works of art

Topic:  Annual Report 1999/2000

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The Gallery has not provided the raw figures omitted from the response to Q 214 from November 2000 questions on notice. Please provide those figures.

Answer:

The answer to Q214 has been previously provided.   A copy is attached.

ATTACHMENT

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  61

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

The NGA has twice declined to supply this Committee with copies of staff complaints or comments about the building environment, mould and air conditioning from 1996 to the present on the grounds that the effort is “not warranted” (Question 023 21-22//2/01 & Question 205, 30/11/00). Please provide the information requested, that is all complaints or comments by staff in relation to the building environment, mould and air conditioning issues held on any relevant registry files since 1996, in particular the building related registry files.

Answer:

It will take some considerable time to review Gallery files for this information which predates the comprehensive investigation of the Gallery’s HVAC system by AHA Management conducted in the latter half of 2000.   The Gallery will arrange for scanning of Gallery files and for the requested information to be provided when available.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  62

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In response to Question on notice 023, 22/2/0, the Gallery has responded that it is not appropriate to disclose the Effective People Report and other details, including Ministerial correspondence related to the allegations concerning misuse of Gallery resources by Messrs Cox and Sitauti.  Provide this documentation if necessary using available Senate arrangements to maintain confidentiality.

Answer:

It is not appropriate to disclose the Report and other details relating to this issue because the information is staff-in-confidence.

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  63

Topic:  Airconditioning

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In response to Q 133, 20/11/00, the Gallery has provided records of days worked by Mr Cropp from 19th of July 1999 to 11th February 2000. Why were the additional records not provided, for how long is the NGA required by law to retain financial records including Consultant’s records, and provide the Gallery’s written policy and procedures in relation to this matter.

Answer:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997 (Section 20 (2)), the Gallery is required “to retain the records for at least seven years after completion of the transactions to which they relate.” Financial records are retained by the Gallery for the prescribed period.

The records previously provided for the period 19 July 1999 to 11 February 2000 related to Mr Cropp’s services to the Gallery as a contractor over that period, immediately prior to consideration of his application for employment as a Fitter at the Gallery, i.e. to change from contractor to employee.

The nature of documentation submitted by Mr Cropp since his engagement as a contractor in 1993 is such that the number of days worked is not able to be ascertained.   In some cases, days and hours worked are recorded, in others only a summary of hours worked is recorded.

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art



Question:  64

Output: 2.2 – Information about and promotion of works of art

Topic:  Exhibition program

Hansard Page :  Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Provide a complete response to Question 131, 30/11/00, concerning the five year exhibition plan of which the NGA provided only one year’s program.

Answer:

A copy of the Gallery’s draft exhibition programme, which it is emphasised is a work in progress and is subject to change, is enclosed.

ATTACHMENT

Output: 1.3 – Collection maintenance



Question:  65

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art

Topic:  Contractors

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Provide a complete response to Question 147, 30/11/00 “provide a list of contractors engaged during the period July 1999 to July 2000  …..  the dates and times they attended and cost.” The Gallery only provided a list of contractors but no dates, times or costs.

Answer:

Documentation provided in claims for payment received from contractors would not in most cases detail dates and times of attendance at the Gallery.   Details of cost of contractors was previously provided in response to Question 16 on Notice (22.2.01)

Output: 1.2 – Collection documentation 



Question:  66

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art

Output: 2.2 – Information about and promotion of works of art

Topic:  Records

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

In response to Q 212, 30/11/00 the Gallery stated that it does not maintain records of scholars who have visited the Collection Study Room or the works examined by them. According to NGA policy bookings for the Collection Study Room are required to be submitted two weeks in advance, and visitors are required to be provided with a temporary security pass to view the works. Any works relocated within the Gallery have to be logged on the Collection Management Information System (CMIS)

Answer:

The Collection Study Room booking records include some details of the visitor/s.  The Gallery has previously advised that 1,643 visitors viewed 9,998 works of art during the 1999/2000 year.   

Access to the Collection Study Room does not require the issue of a temporary security pass.

Movements within the storage areas, which include the Collection Study Room, have not been recorded on the collection management system.

Output: 1.2 – Collection documentation 



Question:  67

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art

Topic:  Records

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Are NGA security visitors books, booking records and past movements of works of art are regularly destroyed or deleted?  If not, why are these records destroyed?

Answer:

The NGA security visitor books have been retained by the Gallery since it opened to the public and the bookings of the Collection Study Room have been maintained in a diary since 1994 which was the year that the Collection Study Room opened as a facility to the general public.  Records for the movement of works of art from the storage areas to other parts of the Gallery form part of the movement history for works of art and are retained in the computerised collections management system.   Movements within the storage areas, which include the Collection Study Room, have not been recorded on the collection management system.

Output: 1.2 – Collection documentation 



Question:  68

Output: 2.1 – Access to works of art

Topic:  Records

Hansard Page : Tabled

Senator Schacht asked:

Provide all existing CSR bookings records, security records for entry to the CSR and extracts from the CMIS showing which works have been moved to the CSR for viewing.

Answer:

The request for all existing Collection Study Room booking records is currently being acted upon, and the records, amended for privacy purposes, will be provided when available.

Security passes are not required for entry to the Collection Study Room. 

The Collection Study Room, like the area of Photographic Services, forms part of the collection storage area with restricted access.  Works of art that move between these areas are short term, usually one day.  The movement of works of art between these areas are not considered external movements outside the storage area.  Therefore, given the short duration of these movements, they are not recorded on the CMIS system.

